RESTATED BYLAWS OF 1 2 ROSEBURG ROD AND GUN CLUB, INCORPORATED (A Nonprofit Corporation) 3 4 **ADOPTED ON MAY 10, 2012** 5 6 7 ARTICLE I 8 9 NAME AND OBJECT 10 The name of this Corporation shall be Roseburg Rod and Gun Club; its duration shall 11 be perpetual. Its objects are: 12 13 (a) Promote the concept that all persons should be responsible for the viability of our 14 fish and wildlife populations. 15 16 (b) Promote the importance and benefits of protecting our natural resources with 17 regards to sustained recreational uses on both private and public lands. 18 19 (c) Promote and nurture interest in the shooting sports, archery, fishing and related 20 outdoor activities by offering firearms educational opportunities and providing club 21 sponsored activities to develop skills and instill an awareness and respectfulness of 22 safety. 23 24 (d) Promote the general concept of good citizenship, sportsmanship and fellowship to all 25 persons that visit the club grounds or other club sponsored activities. Promote at all 26 times, lawful and ethical activities. 27 28 (e) Work with law enforcement, wild life, and natural resource agencies to foster good 29 relationships and assist them in their respective roles. Help build understanding 30 between those who serve for these agencies and the general public in support of the 31 above mentioned concepts. 32 33 34 ARTICLE II **M**EMBERSHIP 35 36 37 Section 1: Membership in this corporation shall be open to all persons, and shall be evidenced by a certificate of membership in a form approved from time to time by the 38 Board of Directors. Memberships in this Corporation shall be non-transferable nor may 39 40 they be assigned, and any purported or attempted assignment or transfer shall be void. For the purposes of this instrument, the term "member" shall refer to a member (or 41 42 family) whose dues have been paid and who is in good standing. 43 Section 2: Membership policy, classifications and dues may be set from time to time by 44 the Board of Directors, and shall be defined in standing rules. Annual membership dues 45 46 shall be due on a membership-year basis, beginning on the first day of July in a given year and ending on the last day of June of the following year. Dues for new members 47

shall be prorated for the months remaining in the July/June membership-year. No dues shall be refundable upon voluntary or involuntary termination of a membership.

SECTION 3: A member may be expelled and his/her membership cancelled for violation of these Bylaws or for violation of any of the Rules or Regulations of the Corporation, or for conduct that endangers life or property or is prejudicial to the best interests of the club. Expulsion shall occur only after the member has had a hearing before the Board, and at least eight Board members have voted in favor of expulsion. A member expelled from the club may not again become a member except upon written application to and approval by a majority of the Board. No member of the Board of Directors may be expelled by these procedures, but may be expelled only as provided in Article VI, Section 6 of these Bylaws.

Section 4: Any member may resign by notifying the Corporation of his/her resignation.

ARTICLE III FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of September in a given year and end on the last day of August of the following year.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS OF MEMBERS AND VOTING PROCEDURES

Section 1: The regular meeting of the members of this Corporation shall be held on a date specified by the Board of Directors at any regular or special board meeting. Notice of regular members' meetings shall be given not less than ten (10) days prior to the

meeting.

SECTION 2: Special votes of the members may be called from time to time by the Board of Directors or by a request in writing signed by not less than twenty percent (20%) of all members presented to the Secretary of the Corporation. Notice of ballot deadline and ballots shall be mailed to each member not later than ten (10) days prior to the date of the vote tabulation, and shall specify the date and time.

SECTION 3: A majority vote by ballot shall be sufficient to pass any question before the members at any meeting, or to elect any Board member or Officer. Proxies shall not be valid for any voting matters.

SECTION 4: Every member entitled to vote at any meeting may vote by ballot. A ballot shall be in writing, shall bear an issue date, and shall be approved in format and content prior to submission to the membership for a vote. Unless otherwise specified on its face, a ballot shall expire upon tabulation and notice to Directors of ballot results and to members at a formal award meeting or by newsletter for other issues submitted to the membership for a vote.

SECTION 5: The President shall chair all meetings, and shall determine the order of business.

ARTICLE V PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in the current edition of 'Roberts Rules of Order' shall govern the Corporation in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these bylaws and any special rules of order the Corporation may adopt.

ARTICLE VI DIRECTORS

<u>SECTION 1:</u> The property, affairs, activities and concerns of the Corporation shall be vested in a Board of Directors consisting of fifteen (15) Directors. Their terms and the manner of election shall be as provided in Article X. The members shall enter upon the performance of their duties and shall continue in office until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

SECTION 2: The Board of Directors shall: (1) act in all matters concerning expulsion of members and re-admission of expelled members, (2) audit bills and direct the disbursement of the funds of the Corporation, (3) employ such agents as are necessary and appropriate, (4) provide for the maintenance of the corporation's facilities and property, and (5) devise and carry into execution such other matters as it deems expedient to promote the objectives of the Corporation and to best protect the interests of the members.

SECTION 3: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the second Tuesday of each month, excepting, however, that if such day is a holiday, the meeting shall be held the following day. Special meetings may be called from time to time by the President or any three members of the Board, and shall be held pursuant to notice. Notice shall be sent to all Board members for all special meetings not later than three (3) days prior to the meeting, and shall specify the time, date and place of the meeting. Notices of special meetings shall also specify the purpose for which it has been called, and no business other than that specified in the notice may be transacted at such special meeting. A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting shall be a majority of Directors, and any issue may be carried by a majority of those present.

SECTION 4: If any member of the Board shall be absent for three consecutive meetings and the Board shall not so excuse such absences, or if any member of the Board shall miss a total of six (6) meetings within a twelve (12) month period, the Board shall declare his/her seat vacant and proceed to fill the vacancy in the manner provided herein.

<u>SECTION 5:</u> Whenever a vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors, that vacancy shall be filled without undue delay by a majority vote of the remaining Directors.

SECTION 6: Any one or more Directors may be removed from the Board either with or without cause at any time by the members at a general meeting or a special meeting called by the membership in the manner provided above for that purpose. Twenty percent (20%) of the total membership as of the date of the special meeting shall constitute a quorum for expulsion, and a vote of two-thirds of a quorum shall be required for removal.

SECTION 7: No Officer or Board member, nor any voting member of a standing or special committee, shall receive any compensation or salary for services rendered to the Corporation. Under special circumstances the Board may waive some or all of this provision.

ARTICLE VII OFFICERS

SECTION 1: The Officers of this Corporation shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer. They shall be members of the Board of Directors and the manner of their election and term of office shall be as provided in Article X.

SECTION 2: The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation, and shall preside at all meetings of the membership and the Board of Directors. He/she shall appoint all committees as provided in Articles VIII and IX. He/she shall communicate to the members and/or the Board such matters and make such suggestions that are intended to promote the prosperity, welfare and usefulness of the corporation. The President shall appoint an audit committee at the beginning of each fiscal year to conduct a basic review of corporate business functions. The President shall perform all other duties incident to the office of President.

SECTION 3: In case of the death or absence of the President, or his/her inability for any cause to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of this office.

SECTION 4: It shall be the duty of the Secretary to give notice of and attend all meetings of the Corporation and keep a record of their proceedings; to conduct all correspondence and to carry into execution all orders, votes and resolutions not otherwise committed; to keep a list of the members of the Corporation; to notify all Officers and Board members of their election; to notify members of their appointment to committees; to act as the inspector at all elections; to prepare under direction of the Board of Directors an annual report of the transactions and conditions of the Corporation and generally to devote his/her best efforts to forwarding the business and advancing the purposes and interests of the Corporation.

SECTION 5: The Treasurer shall keep an account of all monies received and expended for the use of the Corporation, and shall make disbursements only of claims approved

by the majority of the Board of Directors. He/she shall collect all fees and dues, account for the same, and deposit them into corporate accounts approved by the Board of Directors. All funds not immediately necessary for regular operation of the Corporation shall be maintained at interest in depositories approved by the Board. No corporate funds may be withdrawn except on the signature of the Treasurer. He/she shall maintain a set of books and accounts which shall be open to inspection at any reasonable time by the Board of Directors, and shall report to the Board of Directors on the financial condition of the Corporation at all regular Board meetings.

SECTION 6: A vacancy in any office shall be filled in the manner provided above for the filling of a vacancy on the Board of Directors (refer to Article VI, Section 5).

ARTICLE VIII STANDING COMMITTEES

Section 1: The President, at the beginning of his term and without undue delay, shall appoint the following standing committees consisting of an odd number of not less than three nor more than seven, of Corporation members in good standing, each subject to ratification by the Board of Directors:

Bylaws Committee Events Committee Facilities Committee Finance Committee Grant Committee Rules Committee

Eligibility for serving on any Standing Committee shall be limited to one person per membership or household.

SECTION 2: The purpose of these standing committees is to monitor and review their respective areas of responsibility and make recommendations to the Board of Directors. When deemed appropriate by the respective committees, or upon request of the Board or the President, they shall present formal documents to be considered for adoption by the Board or the general membership.

SECTION 3: During the first meeting of each newly formed standing committee, its members shall elect an officer to serve as Chairman. If desired, the positions of Vice Chairman and Secretary may also be filled. Subsequent elections shall be held without undue delay to fill vacancies in committee officer positions.

SECTION 4: Vacancies in non-officer positions shall be filled without undue delay in compliance with Section 1 of this Article. The involuntary removal of standing committee members shall require a majority vote of the Board of Directors (refer to Article VI, Section 3).

SECTION 5: The term of the members of standing committees shall coincide with the present and reelected terms of the appointing President, or until their successors have been chosen.

ARTICLE IX SPECIAL COMMITTEES

SECTION 1: The Board of Directors, or President, from time to time, may appoint special committees, consisting of an odd number of not less than three nor more than seven, of Corporation members in good standing, subject to ratification by the Board of Directors. Two such bodies to be formed annually are an audit committee (refer to Article VII, Section 2) and a nominating committee (refer to Article X, Section 2). Eligibility for serving on any Special Committee shall be limited to one person per membership or household.

SECTION 2: The purpose of special committees is to perform a specific task and make recommendations to the Board of Directors. Upon request of the Board or the President, they shall present formal documents to be considered for adoption by the Board or the general membership.

<u>Section 3</u>: During the first meeting of each newly formed special committee, its members shall elect an officer to serve as Chairman. If desired, the positions of Vice Chairman and Secretary may also be filled. Subsequent elections shall be held without undue delay to fill vacancies in committee officer positions.

SECTION 4: Vacancies in non-officer positions shall be filled without undue delay in compliance with Section 1 of this Article. The involuntary removal of special committee members shall require a majority vote of the Board of Directors (refer to Article VI, Section 3).

SECTION 5: Special committees shall cease to exist upon completion of their stated mission.

ARTICLE X ELECTION AND TERMS OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: Election of Officers and Directors shall be held by mail-in ballot, and results announced during the regular meeting of the members each year. Terms of office of Officers and Directors of the corporation, except as defined in Section 5, shall begin on the first day of September in a given year and end on the last day of August of the following year. No person shall be eligible to hold a seat on the Board or any office unless such person has been a member in good standing for not less than the two previous consecutive years. This requirement may be waived by the Board of Directors if such waiver is in the best interests of, and beneficial to, the Corporation. Eligibility to hold a seat on the Board or any office shall be limited to one person per membership or household.

SECTION 2: The Board will appoint a nominating committee prior to 90 days before the regular meeting of the members, in accordance with the terms of Article IX. The nominating committee shall make recommendations consisting of one nominee for each upcoming vacant position, and each member shall be provided with a copy of the list of nominees, a mail-in ballot, and notice of the annual members' meeting. The ballot is to be returned no later than one week prior to the date of the noticed annual meeting. Additional nominees may be added to the ballot by Petition only, signed by a total of twenty (20) eligible voting members of the club. The nominating committee must receive petitions no less than thirty (30) days prior to the annual membership meeting date.

The mail-in ballot shall include all items for the annual membership vote, with a number for each item and line for "yes" or "no" that correlates to that item. The ballot format shall also include the name of the nominees and position number of the officer seat to be filled. The Director position(s) are to be voted on listing candidates for each by nominating committee and petition. Each section of the mail-in ballot must be accurately and completely filled out, or that section not completed accurately or completely will be deemed to be "void."

SECTION 3: The Directors' seats shall be numbered seat 1 through seat 15 respectively. The election of the four Officers of this Corporation shall be first held. The President shall fill seat 1 on the Board, the Vice-President shall fill seat 2 on the Board, the Secretary shall fill seat 3 on the Board, and the Treasurer shall fill seat 4 on the Board. The term of the Officers and seats 1 through 4 inclusive shall be two (2) years.

SECTION 4: The past President shall fill Seat number 5 for a term of two (2) years. In the event that the President shall be re-elected by the members for an additional term, seat 5 shall be filled in the manner provided in Section 2 hereof for a term of two (2) years.

SECTION 5: If the election is held on an even-numbered year, seats 3 (Secretary), 4 (Treasurer), 6, 8, 10, 12, and 14 shall be filled by election, each for a term of two years. If the election is held on an odd-numbered year, seats 1 (President), 2 (Vice- President), 7, 9, 11, 13, and 15 shall be filled by election, each for a term of two years.

ARTICLE XI AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be amended, repealed or altered in whole or in part by majority vote at any duly organized meeting of the Corporation. Notice of any and all proposed changes shall be mailed to each member no later than ten (10) days prior to the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered.

I, the undersigned, the duly elected and acting Secretary, do hereby certify that the above Bylaws were duly adopted by the general membership of the Corporation on May 10, 2012.

322	
323	
324	
325	Mary Carter, Secretary
326	
327	
328	
329	